

# Office of the City Clerk

City Hall 121 N. LaSalle St. Room 107 Chicago, IL 60602 www.chicityclerk.com

# Legislation Text

File #: O2014-1847, Version: 1

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

CITY OF CHICAGO

RAHM EMANUEL MAYOR

March 5, 2014

# TO THE HONORABLE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO

#### Ladies and Gentlemen:

At the request of the Commissioner of Planning and Development, I transmit herewith, together with Alderman Lane, an ordinance establishing the Healthy Coiner Store Pilot Program and associated grant agreement.

Your favorable consideration of this ordinance will be appreciated.

Mayor

Very truly yours,

# **ORDINANCE**

WHEREAS, the City has an on-going commitment to increasing access to, and consumer demand for, healthy and affordable foods in Chicago's underserved communities, including: (a) increasing the inventory and variety of affordable fresh produce in corner stores; (b) increasing the visibility and attractiveness of fresh produce items in corner stores; (c) assisting corner stores in effective fresh food retail development strategies; (d) increasing store owners' knowledge about handling and marketing fresh produce items; (e) increasing the sale

of fresh produce items in corner stores; and (f) improving the economic viability of the corner store.

WHEREAS, the City, through its Department of Planning and Development ("DPD"), wishes to implement a Citywide pilot program (the "Healthy Corner Store Pilot Project") to provide assistance to corner stores to achieve the foregoing goals.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Healthy Corner Store Pilot Project, corner store owners will add healthy foods to their shelves, participate in nutrition education for customers, market healthy food, and receive technical assistance on how to improve their sales and operations.

WHEREAS, DPD wishes to enter into a contract with the Inner-City Muslim Action Network ("IMAN") to implement and maintain the Healthy Corner Store Pilot Project (the "Agreement"), including program marketing/outreach, applicant recruitment, application processing, technical assistance, compliance/monitoring and program metrics, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement attached as Exhibit A.

NOW THEREFORE, It is Ordained by the City Council of the City of Chicago:

- 1. The Recitals to this Ordinance are incorporated herein.
- 2. The Commissioner of DPD is authorized to enter into a contract with IMAN, in substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such changes that are reasonably acceptable to the Commissioner.
- 3. This ordinance is effective upon its passage and publication.

#### EXHIBIT A

# PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

#### BETWEEN

# THE CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

# AND Healthy Corner Store Pilot Project (Subject of Agreement) RAHM EMANUEL MAYOR

# INNER-CITY MUSLIM ACTION NETWORK

# PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	TERMS AND CONDITIONS	-4-
ARTI	CLE 1. DEFINITIONS	-4-
1	Definitions	-4-
2	Interpretation	-5-
3	Incorporation of Exhibits	-5-
ARTI	CLE 2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONSULTANT	-5-
1	Scope of Services	-5-
2	Deliverables	-6-
3	Standard of Performance	-6-
4	Personnel	-7-
5	Intentionally Omitted	-7-
6	Insurance	-7-
7	Indemnification	-8-
8	Ownership of Documents	-9-
9	Copyright Ownership	-9-
10	Records and Audits	-10-
11	Confidentiality	-11-
12	Assignments and Subcontracts	-12-
ARTI	CLE 3. DURATION OF AGREEMENT	12-
1	Term of Performance	-12-
2	Timeliness of Performance	-12-
3	Agreement Extension Option	-13-
ARTI	ICLE 4. COMPENSATION	-13-
1	Basis of Payment	-13-

File #: O2014-1847, Version: 1				
2	Method of Payment	-13-		
3	Funding	-13-		
4	Non-Appropriation	-13-		
ART	TICLE 5. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS	-13-		
1	Compliance with All Laws Generally	-13-		
2	Nondiscrimination	-14-		
3	Inspector General	-15-		
4	MacBride Ordinance	-15-		
5	Business Relationships with Elected Officials	-16-		
6	Chicago "Living Wage" Ordinance	-16-		
U	i	-10-		
7 8	Environmental Warranties and Representations -17- Prohibition on Certain Contributions -18-			
9	Firms Owned or Operated by Individuals with Disabilities -20-			
10	Ineligibility to do Business with City	-20-		
11	Deemed Inclusion	-20-		
ART	TICLE 6. SPECIAL CONDITIONS	-20-		
1	Warranties and Representations '.	-20-		
2	Ethics	-22-		
3	Joint and Several Liability	-22-		
4	Business Documents	-22-		
5	Conflicts of Interest	-22-		
6	Non-Liability of Public Officials	-23-		
7	EDS / Certification Regarding Suspension and Debarment	-24-		
ΔΡΤ	TICLE 7. EVENTS OF DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION, SUS	SPENSION AND		
71111	RIGHT TO OFFSET	-24-		
1	Events of Default Defined	-24-		
2	Remedies	-25-		
3	Early Termination	-27-		
4	Suspension	-27-		
5	Right to Offset	-28-		
3	Right to Offset	-20-		
ART	TICLE 8. GENERAL CONDITIONS	-28-		
1	Entire Agreement	-28-		
2	Counterparts	-29-		
3	Amendments	-29-		
4	Governing Law and Jurisdiction	-30-		
5	Severability	-30-		
6	Assigns	-30-		
7	Cooperation	-30-		
8	Waiver	-31-		

File #: O2014-1847, Version: 1			
9 I	Independent Contractor	-31 -	
ARTICLE 9. NOTICES		-32-	
ARTICLE 10. AUTHORITY -33-		-33-	
SIGNATURE PAGE(S)		-34-	

ii

#### List of Exhibits

EXHIBIT 1 SCOPE OF SERVICES AND TIME LIMITS FOR PERFORMANCE EXHIBIT 2 SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION
EXHIBIT 3 ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT
EXHIBIT 4 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE EXHIBIT 5 LIST OF KEY PERSONNEL

# **AGREEMENT**

This Agreement is entered into as ofthe day of , 2014 ("Effective Date") by and between Inner-City Muslim Action Network, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation ("Consultant" or "IMAN"), and the City of Chicago, a municipal corporation and home rule unit of local government existing under the Constitution of the State of Illinois, acting through its Department of Planning and Development ("City"), at Chicago, Illinois. The City and Consultant agree as follows:

# **TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

#### ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS

#### 1.1 Definitions

The following words and phrases have the following meanings for purposes of this Agreement:

"Additional Services" means those services which are within the general scope of Services of this Agreement, but beyond the description of services required under Section 2.1, and all services reasonably necessary to complete the Additional Services to the standards of performance required by this Agreement. Any Additional Services requested by the Department require the approval of the City in a written amendment under Section 8.3 of this Agreement before Consultant is obligated to perform those Additional Services and before the City becomes obligated to pay for those Additional Services.

"Agreement" means this Professional Services Agreement, including all exhibits attached to it and

incorporated in it by reference, and all amendments, modifications or revisions made in accordance with its terms.

"Chief Procurement Officer" means the Chief Procurement Officer of the City and any representative duly authorized in writing to act on her behalf.

"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Department.

"Department" means the Department of Planning and Development.

"Services" means, collectively, the services, duties and responsibilities described in Article 2 and Exhibit 1 of this Agreement and any and all work necessary to complete them or carry them out fully and to the standard of performance required in this Agreement.

"Subcontractor" means any person or entity with whom Consultant contracts to provide any part of the Services, including subcontractors and subconsultants of any tier, suppliers and materials providers, whether or not in privity with Consultant.

4

# 1.2 Interpretation

- a) The term "include" (in all its forms) means "include, without limitation" unless the context clearly states otherwise.
- b) All references in this Agreement to Articles, Sections or Exhibits, unless otherwise expressed or indicated are to the Articles, Sections or Exhibits of this Agreement.
- c) Words importing persons include firms, associations, partnerships, trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public bodies, as well as natural persons.
- d) Any headings preceding the text of the Articles and Sections of this Agreement, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to it, are solely for convenience or reference and do not constitute a part of this Agreement, nor do they affect the meaning, construction or effect of this Agreement.
- e) Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa. Words of the masculine gender include the correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders.
  - f) All references to a number of days mean calendar days, unless indicated otherwise.

#### 1.3 Incorporation of Exhibits

The following attached Exhibits are made a part of this Agreement:

Exhibit 1 Exhibit 2 Exhibit 3 Exhibit 4 Exhibit 5 Scope of Services and Time Limits for Performance Schedule of Compensation Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit Insurance Requirements and Evidence of Insurance List of Key Personnel

# ARTICLE 2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONSULTANT

# 1 Scope of Services

This description of Services is intended to be general in nature and is neither a complete description of Consultant's Services nor a limitation on the Services that Consultant is to provide under this Agreement. Consultant must provide the Services in accordance with the standards of performance set forth in Section 2.3. The Services that Consultant must provide are described in Exhibit L Scope of Services and Time Limits for Performance.

# 2 Deliverables

5

In carrying out its Services, Consultant must prepare or provide to the City various Deliverables. "Deliverables" include work product, such as written reviews, recommendations, reports and analyses, produced by Consultant for the City.

The City may reject Deliverables that do not include relevant information or data, or do not include all documents or other materials specified in this Agreement or reasonably necessary for the purpose for which the City made this Agreement or for which the City intends to use the Deliverables. If the City determines that Consultant has failed to comply with the foregoing standards, it has 30 days from the discovery to notify Consultant of its failure. If Consultant does not correct the failure, if it is possible to do so, within 30 days after receipt of notice from the City specifying the failure, then the City, by written notice, may treat the failure as a default of this Agreement under Section 7.1.

Partial or incomplete Deliverables may be accepted for review only when required for a specific and well-defined purpose for the benefit of the City and when consented to in advance by the City. Such Deliverables will not be considered as satisfying the requirements of this Agreement and partial or incomplete Deliverables in no way relieve Consultant of its obligations under this Agreement.

#### 2.3 Standard of Performance

Consultant must perform all Services required of it under this Agreement with that degree of skill, care and diligence normally shown by a consultant performing services of a scope and purpose and magnitude comparable with the nature of the Services to be provided under this Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that it is entrusted with or has access to valuable and confidential information and records of the City and with respect to that information, Consultant agrees to be held to the standard of care of a fiduciary. Any review, approval, acceptance of Services or Deliverables or payment for any of the Services by the City does not relieve Consultant of its responsibility for the professional skill and care and technical accuracy of its Services and Deliverables. This provision in no way limits the City's rights against Consultant under this Agreement, at law or in equity.

Consultant must be appropriately licensed to perform the Services, if required by law, and must ensure

that all Services that require the exercise of professional skills or judgment are accomplished by professionals qualified and competent in the applicable discipline and appropriately licensed as may be required by law. Consultant must provide copies of any such licenses. Consultant remains responsible for the professional and technical accuracy of all Services or Deliverables furnished. All Deliverables must be prepared in a form and content satisfactory to the Department and delivered in a timely manner consistent with the requirements of this Agreement.

If Consultant fails to comply with the foregoing standards, Consultant must, at the City's option, perform again, at its own expense, all Services required to be re-performed as a direct or

6

indirect result of that failure, unless the reason is failure to have and maintain required licensure. See subsection 7.1 (b)(ii) regarding failure to comply with licensure requirements.

#### 4 Personnel

# a) Adequate Staffing

Consultant must, upon receiving a fully executed copy of this Agreement, assign and maintain during the term of this Agreement and any extension of it an adequate staff of competent personnel that is fully equipped, licensed as appropriate, available as needed, qualified and assigned exclusively to perform the Services. Consultant must include among its staff the Key Personnel and positions as identified below. The level of staffing may be revised from time to time by notice in writing from Consultant to the City and with prior written consent of the City.

# b) Key Personnel

Consultant must not reassign or replace Key Personnel without the written consent of the City. "Key Personnel" means those job titles and the persons assigned to those positions in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2.4(b). The Department may at any time in writing notify Consultant that the City will no longer accept performance of Services under this Agreement by one or more Key Personnel listed. Upon that notice Consultant must immediately suspend the key person or persons from performing Services under this Agreement and must replace him or them in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Key Personnel, if any, are identified in Exhibit 5.

## c) Salaries and Wages

Consultant must pay all salaries and wages due all employees performing Services under this Agreement unconditionally and at least once a month without deduction or rebate on any account, except only for those payroll deductions that are mandatory by law or are permitted under applicable law and regulations. If in the performance of this Agreement Consultant underpays any such salaries or wages, the Commissioner may withhold, out of payments due to Consultant, an amount sufficient to pay to employees underpaid the difference between the salaries or wages required to be paid under this Agreement and the salaries or wages actually paid these employees for the total number of hours worked. The amounts withheld may be disbursed by the Commissioner for and on account of Consultant to the respective employees to whom they are due. The parties

acknowledge that this Section 2.4(c) is solely for the benefit of the City and that it does not grant any third party beneficiary rights.

- 5 Intentionally Omitted
- 6 Insurance

7

1

Consultant must provide and maintain at Consultant's own expense, during the term of this Agreement and any time period following expiration if Consultant is required to return and perform any of the Services or Additional Services under this Agreement, the insurance coverages and requirements specified in Exhibit 4 of this Agreement, insuring all operations related to this Agreement.

#### 2.7 Indemnification

- a) Consultant must defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its officers, representatives, elected and appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and all Losses, including those related to:
  - i) injury, death or damage of or to any person or property;
- ii) any infringement or violation of any property right (including any patent, trademark or copyright);
- iii) Consultant's failure to perform or cause to be performed Consultant's promises and obligations as and when required under this Agreement;
- iv) the City's exercise of its rights and remedies under Section 7.2 of this Agreement; and
  - (v) injuries to or death of any employee of Consultant under any workers compensation statute.
- b) "Losses" means, individually and collectively, liabilities of every kind, including losses, damages and reasonable costs, payments and expenses (such as, but not limited to, court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements), claims, demands, actions, suits, proceedings, judgments or settlements, any or all of which in any way arise out of or relate to Consultant's breach of this Agreement or to Consultant's negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions or those of its officers, agents, employees, consultants, or

licensees.

- c) At the City Corporation Counsel's option, Consultant must defend all suits brought upon all such Losses and must pay all costs and expenses incidental to them, but the City has the right, at its option, to participate, at its own cost, in the defense of any suit, without relieving Consultant of any of its obligations under this Agreement. Any settlement must be made only with the prior written consent of the City Corporation Counsel, if the settlement requires any action on the part of the City.
- d) To the extent permissible by law, Consultant waives any limits to the amount of its obligations to defend, indemnify, hold harmless, or contribute to any sums due under any Losses, including any claim by any employee of Consultant that may be subject to the Workers Compensation Act, 820 ILCS 305/1 et seq. or any other related law or judicial decision (such as,

8

Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corporation, 146 111. 2d 155 (1991)). The City, however, does not waive any limitations it may have on its liability under the Illinois Workers Compensation Act, the Illinois Pension Code, any other statute or judicial decision.

(e) The indemnities in this section survive expiration or termination of this Agreement for matters occurring or arising during the term of this Agreement or as the result of or during Consultant's performance of Services beyond the term. Consultant acknowledges that the requirements set forth in this section to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City are apart from and not limited by the Consultant's duties under this Agreement, including the insurance requirements in Exhibit 4 of this Agreement.

# **8** Ownership of Documents

All Deliverables, data, findings or information in any form prepared, assembled or encountered by or provided to Consultant under this Agreement are property of the City, including, as further described in Section 2.9 below, all copyrights inherent in them or their preparation. During performance of its Services, Consultant is responsible for any loss or damage to the Deliverables, data, findings or information while in Consultant's possession. Any such lost or damaged Deliverables, data, findings or information must be restored at the expense of Consultant. If not restorable, Consultant must bear the cost of replacement and of any loss suffered by the City on account of the destruction, as provided in Section 2.7.

# 9 Copyright Ownership

Consultant and the City intend that, to the extent permitted by law, the Deliverables to be produced by Consultant at the City's instance and expense under this Agreement are conclusively deemed "works made for hire" within the meaning and purview of Section 101 of the United States Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. §101 et seq., and that the City will be the sole copyright owner of the Deliverables and of all aspects, elements and components of them in which copyright can subsist, and of all rights to apply for copyright registration or prosecute any claim of infringement.

To the extent that any Deliverable does not qualify as a "work made for hire," Consultant hereby

irrevocably grants, conveys, bargains, sells, assigns, transfers and delivers to the City, its successors and assigns, all right, title and interest in and to the copyrights and all U.S. and foreign copyright registrations, copyright applications and copyright renewals for them, and other intangible, intellectual property embodied in or pertaining to the Deliverables prepared for the City under this Agreement, and all goodwill relating to them, free and clear of any liens, claims or other encumbrances, to the fullest extent permitted by law. Consultant will, and will cause all of its employees, agents and other persons within its control to, execute all documents and perform all acts that the City may reasonably request in order to assist the City in perfecting its rights in and to the copyrights relating to the Deliverables, at the sole expense of the City. Consultant warrants to the City, its successors and assigns, that on the date of transfer Consultant is the lawful owner of good and marketable title in and to the copyrights for the Deliverables and

9

has the legal rights to fully assign them. Consultant further warrants that it has not assigned and will not assign any copyrights and that it has not granted and will not grant any licenses, exclusive or nonexclusive, to any other party, and that it is not a party to any other agreements or subject to any other restrictions with respect to the Deliverables. Consultant warrants that the Deliverables are complete, entire and comprehensive, and that the Deliverables constitute a work of original authorship.

#### 2.10 Records and Audits

# a) Records

- i) Consultant must deliver or cause to be delivered to the City all documents, including all Deliverables prepared for the City under the terms of this Agreement, promptly in accordance with the time limits prescribed in this Agreement, and if no time limit is specified, then upon reasonable demand for them or upon termination or completion of the Services under this Agreement. If Consultant fails to make such delivery upon demand, then Consultant must pay to the City any damages the City may sustain by reason of Consultant's failure.
- ii) Consultant must maintain any such records including Deliverables not delivered to the City or demanded by the City for a period of 5 years after the final payment made in connection with this Agreement. Consultant must not dispose of such documents following the expiration of this period without notification of and written approval from the City in accordance with Article 9.

# b) Audits

- i) Consultant must furnish the Department with all information that may be requested pertaining to the performance and cost of the Services. Consultant must maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred. Consultant must keep books, documents, papers, records and accounts in connection with the Services open to audit, inspection, copying, abstracting and transcription and must make these records available to the City and any other interested governmental agency, at reasonable times during the performance of its Services.
- ii) To the extent that Consultant conducts any business operations separate and apart from the Services required under this Agreement using, for example, personnel, equipment, supplies or

facilities also used in connection with this Agreement, then Consultant must maintain and make similarly available to the City detailed records supporting Consultant's allocation to this Agreement of the costs and expenses attributable to any such shared usages.

iii) Consultant must maintain its books, records, documents and other evidence and adopt accounting procedures and practices sufficient to reflect properly all costs of whatever nature claimed to have been incurred and anticipated to be incurred for

10

or in connection with the performance of this Agreement. This system of accounting must be in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices, consistently applied throughout.

- (iv) No provision in this Agreement granting the City a right of access to records and documents is intended to impair, limit or affect any right of access to such records and documents which the City would have had in the absence of such provisions.
- (v) The City may in its sole discretion audit the records of Consultant at any time during the term of this Agreement or within five years after the Agreement ends, in connection with the goods, work, or Services provided under this Agreement. Each calendar year or partial calendar year is considered an Aaudited period. If, as a result of any such audit, it is determined that Consultant has overcharged the City in the audited period, the City will notify Consultant. Consultant must then promptly reimburse the City for any amounts the City has paid Consultant due to the overcharges and also some or all of the cost of the audit, as follows:
  - A. If the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than 5% of the total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or Services provided in the audited period, then the Consultant must reimburse the City for 50% of the cost of the audit and 50% of the cost of each subsequent audit that the City conducts;
  - B. If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing 5% or more of the total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or Services provided in the audited period, then Consultant must reimburse the City for the full cost of the audit and of each subsequent audit.

Failure of Consultant to reimburse the City in accordance with subsection A or B above is an event of default under Section 7.1 of this Agreement, and Consultant will be liable for all of the City's costs of collection, including any court costs and attorneys' fees.

# 2.11 Confidentiality

(a) All Deliverables and reports, data, findings or information in any form prepared, assembled or encountered by or provided by Consultant under this Agreement are property of the City and are confidential, except as specifically authorized in this Agreement or as may be required by law. Consultant must not allow the Deliverables to be made available to any other individual or organization without the prior written consent of

the City, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. Further, all documents and other information provided to Consultant by the City are confidential and must not be made available to any other individual or organization without the prior written consent of the City, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.

11

Consultant must implement such measures as may be necessary to ensure that its staff is bound by the confidentiality provisions in this Agreement.

- b) Consultant must not issue any publicity news releases or grant press interviews, and except as may be required by law during or after the performance of this Agreement, disseminate any information regarding its Services or the project to which the Services pertain without the prior written consent of the City.
- c) If Consultant is presented with a request for documents by any administrative agency or with a subpoena duces tecum regarding any records, data or documents which may be in Consultant's possession by reason of this Agreement, Consultant must immediately give notice to the Department and the Corporation Counsel for the City with the understanding that the City will have the opportunity to contest such process by any means available to it before the records, data or documents are submitted to a court or other third party. Consultant, however, is not obligated to withhold the delivery beyond the time ordered by a court or administrative agency, unless the subpoena or request is quashed or the time to produce is otherwise extended.

# 2.12 Assignments and Subcontracts

- a) Consultant must not assign, delegate or otherwise transfer all or any part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement and may not subcontract any portion of the Services.
- b) The City reserves the right to assign or otherwise transfer all or any part of its interests under this Agreement to any successor.

# **ARTICLE 3. DURATION OF AGREEMENT**

#### 1 Term of Performance

This Agreement takes effect as of the Effective Date and continues, except as provided under Article 7, for 12 months, as that date may be extended under Section 3.3.

#### 2 Timeliness of Performance

- a) Consultant must provide the Services and Deliverables within the time limits required under Exhibit 1. Further, Consultant acknowledges that TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE and that the failure of Consultant to comply with the required time limits may result in economic or other losses to the City.
- b) Neither Consultant nor Consultant's agents or employees are entitled to any damages from the City, nor is any party entitled to be reimbursed by the City, for damages, charges or other losses or expenses

incurred by Consultant by reason of delays or hindrances in the performance of the Services, whether or not caused by the City.

12

# 3.3 Agreement Extension Option

The Commissioner may at any time before this Agreement expires elect to extend this Agreement for up to 1 year, under the same terms and conditions as this original Agreement, by notice in writing to Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 4. COMPENSATION**

# 1 Basis of Payment

Consultant's sole compensation for the completion of the Services in accordance with this Agreement, including the standard of performance in Section 2.3, is set forth in the attached Exhibit 2.

# 2 Method of Payment

Consultant must submit invoices (in triplicate) to the City for fees, as outlined in the Schedule of Compensation in Exhibit 2. The invoices must be in sufficient detail to support Consultant's invoice for fees. The City will process payment within 60 days after receipt of invoices and all supporting documentation necessary for the City to verify the Services provided under this Agreement.

# 3 Funding

The source of funds for payments under this Agreement is Fund number 013.0100.544063.0140.220140. Payments under this Agreement must not exceed \$40,000 without a written amendment in accordance with Section 8.3. Funding for this Agreement is subject to the availability of funds and their appropriation by the City Council of the City.

# 4 Non-Appropriation

If no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any fiscal period of the City for payments to be made under this Agreement, then the City will notify Consultant in writing of that occurrence, and this Agreement will terminate on the earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated for payment under this Agreement are exhausted. Payments for Services completed to the date of notification will be made to Consultant, except that no payments will be made or due to Consultant under this Agreement beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to fund payments under this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 5. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS 5.1**

# **Compliance with AH Laws Generally**

- a) Consultant must observe and comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in effect now or later and whether or not they appear in this Agreement, including those set forth in this Article 5, and Consultant must pay all taxes and obtain all licenses, certificates and other authorizations required by them. Further, Consultant must execute an Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit ("EDS") in the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 3. Notwithstanding acceptance by the City of the EDS, Consultant's failure in the EDS to include all information required under the Municipal Code renders this Agreement voidable at the option of the City. Consultant must promptly update its EDS(s) on file with the City whenever any information or response provided in the EDS(s) is no longer complete and accurate. Contractor agrees that Contractor's failure to maintain current throughout the term and any extensions of the term, the disclosures and information pertaining to ineligibility to do business with the City under Chapter 1 -23 of the Municipal Code, as such is required under Sec. 2-154-020, shall constitute an event of default.
- b) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, references to a statute or law are considered to be a reference to (i) the statute or law as it may be amended from time to time; (ii) all regulations and rules pertaining to or promulgated pursuant to the statute or law; and (iii) all future statutes, laws, regulations, rules and executive orders pertaining to the same or similar subject matter.

#### 5.2 Nondiscrimination

#### (a) Consultant

Consultant must comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws and related regulations prohibiting discrimination against individuals and groups.

# (i) Federal Requirements

Consultant must not engage in unlawful employment practices, such as (1) failing or refusing to hire or discharging any individual, or otherwise discriminating against any individual with respect to compensation or the terms, conditions, or privileges of the individual's employment, because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap/disability or national origin; or (2) limiting, segregating or classifying Consultant's employees or applicants for employment in any way that would deprive or tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect the individual's status as an employee, because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, age, handicap/disability or national origin.

Consultant must comply with, and the procedures Consultant utilizes and the Services Consultant provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. sec. 2000e etseq. (1981), as amended and the Civil Rights Act of 1991, P.L. 102-166. Attention is called to: Exec. Order No. 11246,30 Fed. Reg. 12,319 (1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. 2000e note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11375, 32 Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967)

and by Exec. Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (1978); Age Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6101 -6106(1981); Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§621-34; Rehabilitation Act of 1973,29 U.S.C. §§ 793-794 (1981); Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 41 C.F.R. Part 60 et seq. (1990); and all other applicable federal statutes, regulations and other laws.

# ii) State Requirements

Consultant must comply with, and the procedures Consultant utilizes and the Services Consultant provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Illinois Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 etseq. (1990), as amended and any rules and regulations promulgated in accordance with it, including the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause, 44 111. Admin. Code § 750 Appendix A. Furthermore, Consultant must comply with the Public Works Employment Discrimination Act, 775 ILCS 10/0.01 etseq. (1990), as amended, and all other applicable state statutes, regulations and other laws.

# iii) City Requirements

Consultant must comply with, and the procedures Consultant utilizes and the Services Consultant provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Chicago Human Rights Ordinance, ch. 2-160, Section 2-160-010 etseq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago (1990), as amended, and all other applicable City ordinances and rules.

# 3 Inspector General

It is the duty of any bidder, proposer or Consultant, every applicant for certification of eligibility for a City contract or program, and all officers, directors, agents, partners and employees of any bidder, proposer, Consultant, or such applicant to cooperate with the Legislative Inspector General or the Inspector General in any investigation or hearing, if applicable, undertaken pursuant to Chapters 2-55 or 2-56, respectively, of the Municipal Code. Consultant understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapters 2-55 and 2-56 of the Municipal Code.

#### 4 MacBride Ordinance

The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles Ordinance seeks to promote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices for religious minorities in Northern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Northern Ireland.

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, if Consultant conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, the Consultant must make all reasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois Public Act 85-1390(1988 111. Laws 3220).

The provisions of this Section 5.4 do not apply to contracts for which the City receives funds administered by the United States Department of Transportation, except to the extent Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation not withhold funds from states and localities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to comply with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, or to the extent that such funds are not otherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation.

# 5 **Business Relationships with Elected Officials**

Pursuant to § 2-156-030(b) of the Municipal Code, it is illegal for any elected official of the City, or any person acting at the direction of such official, to contact, either orally or in writing, any other City official or employee with respect to any matter involving any person with whom the elected official has a business relationship, or to participate in any discussion in any City Council committee hearing or in any City Council meeting or to vote on any matter involving the person with whom an elected official has a business relationship. Violation of Section 2-156-030(b) by any elected official with respect to this Agreement is grounds for termination of this Agreement. The term business relationship is defined as set forth in § 2-156-080 of the Municipal Code .

Section 2-156-080 defines a "business relationship" as any contractual or other private business dealing of an official, or his or her spouse, or of any entity in which an official or his or her spouse has a financial interest, with a person or entity which entitles an official to compensation or payment in the amount of \$2,500 or more in a calendar year; provided, however, a financial interest shall not include: (i) any ownership through purchase at fair market value or inheritance of less than one percent of the share of a corporation, or any corporate subsidiary, parent or affiliate thereof, regardless of the value of or dividends on such shares, if such shares are registered on a securities exchange pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; (ii) the authorized compensation paid to an official or employee for his office or employment; (iii) any economic benefit provided equally to all residents of the City; (iv) a time or demand deposit in a financial institution; or (v) an endowment or insurance policy or annuity contract purchased from an insurance company. A contractual or other private business dealing shall not include any employment relationship of an official's spouse with an entity when such spouse has no discretion concerning or input relating to the relationship between that entity and the City.

# 6 Chicago "Living Wage" Ordinance

- (a) Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code provides for a living wage for certain categories of workers employed in the performance of City contracts, specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborers, home and health care workers, cashiers, elevator operators, custodial workers and clerical workers ("Covered Employees"). Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and regulations promulgated under it:
  - i) If Consultant has 25 or more full-time employees, and
  - ii) If at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Consultant

and/or any Subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services (collectively "Performing Parties") uses 25 or more full-time security guards, or any number of other full-time Covered Employees, then

- (iii) Consultant must pay its Covered Employees, and must ensure that all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision (the "Base Wage") for all Services performed under this Agreement.
- (b) Consultant's obligation to pay, and to ensure payment of, the Base Wage will begin at any time during the term of this Agreement when the conditions set forth in (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above are met, and will continue until the end of the term of this Agreement.
- (c) As of July 1, 2013, the Base Wage is \$11.78 per hour, and each July 1 thereafter, the Base Wage will be adjusted using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of four as published annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, to constitute the following: the poverty guidelines for a family of four divided by 2000 hours or the current base wage, whichever is higher. The currently applicable Base Wage is available from the Department of Procurement Services. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant and all other Performing Parties must pay the Base Wage (as adjusted in accordance with the above). If the payment of prevailing wages is required for Services done under this Agreement, and the prevailing wages for Covered Employees are higher than the Base Wage, then Consultant and all other Performing Parties must pay the prevailing wage rates.
- d) Consultant must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring its Subcontractors to pay the Base Wage to Covered Employees. Consultant agrees to provide the City with documentation acceptable to the Commissioner demonstrating that all Covered Employees, whether employed by Consultant or by a Subcontractor, have been paid the Base Wage, upon the City's request for such documentation. The City may independently audit Consultant and/or Subcontractors to verify compliance with this section. Failure to comply with the requirements of this section will be an event of default under this Agreement, and further, failure to comply may result in ineligibility for any award of a City contract or subcontract for up to 3 years.
- e) Not-for-Profit Corporations: If Consultant is a corporation having federal tax-exempt status under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is recognized under Illinois not-for-profit law, then the provisions of subsections (a) through (d) above do not apply.

# 5.7 Environmental Warranties and Representations

In accordance with Section 11-4-1600(e) of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Consultant warrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its subcontractors have not violated and are not in violation of the following sections of the Code (collectively, the Waste Sections):

7-28-390 Dumping on public way;

7-28-440 Dumping on real estate without permit;

11-4-1410 Disposal in waters prohibited;

11-4-1420 Ballast tank, bilge tank or other discharge;

11-4-1450 Gas manufacturing residue;

11-4-1500 Treatment and disposal of solid or liquid waste;

11-4-1530 Compliance with rules and regulations required;

11-4-1550 Operational requirements; and

11-4-1560 Screening requirements.

During the period while this Agreement is executory, Consultant's or any subcontractor's violation of the Waste Sections, whether or not relating to the performance of this Agreement, constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Agreement, for which the opportunity to cure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole discretion of the Commissioner. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies under the Agreement, at law or in equity.

This section does not limit Consultant's and its subcontractors' duty to comply with all applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in effect now or later, and whether or not they appear in this Agreement.

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the City as grounds for the termination of this Agreement, and may further affect Consultant's eligibility for future contract awards.

#### 5.8 Prohibition on Certain Contributions

Consultant agrees that Consultant, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in Consultant of more than 7.5 percent ("Owners"), spouses and domestic partners of such Owners, Consultant's subcontractors, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in any subcontractor of more than 7.5 percent ("Sub-owners") and spouses and domestic partners of such Sub-owners (Consultant and all the other preceding classes of persons and entities are together, the "Identified Parties"), shall not make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor of the City of Chicago ("Mayor") or to his political fundraising committee (i) after execution of this Agreement by Consultant, (ii) while this Agreement or any Other Contract is executory, (iii) during the term of this Agreement or any Other Contract between Consultant and the City, or (iv) during any period while an extension of this Agreement or any Other Contract is being sought or negotiated.

Consultant represents and warrants that since the date of public advertisement of the specification, request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or any combination of those requests) or, if not competitively procured, from the date the City approached Consultant or the date Consultant approached the City, as applicable, regarding the formulation of this Agreement, no Identified Parties have made a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Consultant agrees that it shall not: (a) coerce, compel or intimidate its employees to make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fundraising committee; (b) reimburse its employees for a contribution of any amount made to the Mayor or to the Mayor's political fundraising committee; or (c) bundle or solicit others to bundle contributions to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Consultant agrees that the Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoever designed to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 or to entice, direct or solicit others to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011 -4.

Consultant agrees that a violation of, non-compliance with, misrepresentation with respect to, or breach of any covenant or warranty under this provision or violation of Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011 -4 constitutes a breach and default under this Agreement, and under any Other Contract for which no opportunity to cure will be granted. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies (including without limitation termination for default) under this Agreement, under Other Contract, at law and in equity. This provision amends any Other Contract and supersedes any inconsistent provision contained therein.

If Consultant violates this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 prior to award of the Agreement resulting from this specification, the Commissioner may reject Consultant's bid.

For purposes of this provision:

"Bundle" means to collect contributions from more than one source which are then delivered by one person to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

"Other Contract" means any other agreement with the City of Chicago to which Consultant is a party that is (i) formed under the authority of chapter 2-92 of the Municipal Code of Chicago; (ii) entered into for the purchase or lease of real or personal property; or (iii) for materials, supplies, equipment or services which are approved or authorized by the city council.

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

Individuals are "Domestic Partners" if they satisfy the following criteria:

- A) they are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's common welfare; and
- B) neither party is married, as marriage is defined under Illinois law; and
- C) the partners are not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the State of Illinois; and
- D) each partner is at least 18 years of age, and the partners are the same sex, and the partners reside at the same residence; and

19

- (E) two of the following four conditions exist for the partners:
- 1. The partners have been residing together for at least 12 months.

- 2. The partners have common or joint ownership of a residence.
- 3. The partners have at least two of the following arrangements:
  - a. joint ownership of a motor vehicle;
  - b. a joint credit account;
  - c. a joint checking account;
  - d. a lease for a residence identifying both domestic partners as tenants.
- 4. Each partner identifies the other partner as a primary beneficiary in a will.

"Political fundraising committee" means a "political fundraising committee" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal code of Chicago, as amended."

# 9 Firms Owned or Operated by Individuals with Disabilities.

The City encourages consultants to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or operated by individuals with disabilities, as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law.

# 10 Ineligibility to do Business with City.

Failure by the Contractor or any Controlling Person (defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code) thereof to maintain eligibility to do business with the City in violation of Section 1-23-030 of the Municipal Code shall render this Contract voidable or subject to termination, at the option of the Chief Procurement Officer. Contractor agrees that Contractor's failure to maintain eligibility (or failure by Controlling Persons to maintain eligibility) to do business with the City in violation of Section 1-23-030 of the Municipal Code shall constitute an event of default.

#### 11 Deemed Inclusion

Provisions required by law, ordinances, rules, regulations, or executive orders to be inserted in this Agreement are deemed inserted in this Agreement whether or not they appear in this Agreement or, upon application by either party, this Agreement will be amended to make the insertion; however, in no event will the failure to insert the provisions before or after this Agreement is signed prevent its enforcement.

# **ARTICLE 6. SPECIAL CONDITIONS**

#### **6.1** Warranties and Representations

In connection with signing and carrying out this Agreement, Consultant:

20

- a) warrants that Consultant is appropriately licensed under Illinois law to perform the Services required under this Agreement and will perform no Services for which a professional license is required by law and for which Consultant is not appropriately licensed;
  - b) warrants it is financially solvent; it and each of its employees and agents of any tier are

competent to perform the Services required under this Agreement; and Consultant is legally authorized to execute and perform or cause to be performed this Agreement under the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement;

- c) warrants that it will not knowingly use the services of any ineligible contractor for any purpose in the performance of its Services under this Agreement;
- d) warrants that Consultant are not in default at the time this Agreement is signed, and have not been deemed by the Chief Procurement Officer to have, within 5 years immediately preceding the date of this Agreement, been found to be in default on any contract awarded by the City;
- e) represents that it has carefully examined and analyzed the provisions and requirements of this Agreement; it understands the nature of the Services required; from its own analysis it has satisfied itself as to the nature of all things needed for the performance of this Agreement; this Agreement is feasible of performance in accordance with all of its provisions and requirements, and Consultant warrants it can and will perform, or cause to be performed, the Services in strict accordance with the provisions and requirements of this Agreement;
- f) represents that Consultant is not in violation of the provisions of § 2-92-320 of the Municipal Code, and in connection with it, and additionally in connection with the Illinois Criminal Code, 720 ILCS 5/33E as amended, and the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1;
- g) acknowledges that it is the duty of the Consultant to report to the Inspector General, directly and without undue delay, any and all information concerning conduct which it knows or should reasonably know to involve corrupt or other unlawful activity by its employees or the employees of any of its subcontractors, in connection with the performance of City work, or by any person dealing with the City which concerns the person's dealings with the City. Knowing failure to make such a report will be an event of default under this Agreement;
- h) acknowledges that any certification, affidavit or acknowledgment made under oath in connection with this Agreement is made under penalty of perjury and, if false, is also cause for termination under Sections 7.2 and 7.3 of this Agreement; and
- (i) warrants and represents that neither Consultant nor an Affiliate of Consultant (as defined below) appears on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the unverified List, the Entity List, or the Debarred List as maintained by the Office of Foreign

21

Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of U.S. Department of Commerce (or their successors), or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment. "Affiliate of Consultant" means a person or entity that directly (or indirectly through one or more intermediaries) controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Consultant. A person or entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity if it is controlled in any manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other person or entity (either acting individually or acting jointly or in concert with others) whether directly or indirectly and

whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise.

#### 2 Ethics

- a) In addition to the foregoing warranties and representations, Consultant warrants:
- (i) no officer, agent or employee of the City is employed by Consultant or has a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Agreement or the compensation to be paid under this Agreement except as may be permitted in writing by the Board of Ethics established under Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code .
- b) Consultant further acknowledges that any Agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 2-156 is voidable as to the City.

# **3 Joint and Several Liability**

If Consultant, or its successors or assigns, if any, is comprised of more than one individual or other legal entity (or a combination of them), then under this Agreement, each and without limitation every obligation or undertaking in this Agreement to be fulfilled or performed by Consultant is the joint and several obligation or undertaking of each such individual or other legal entity.

#### 4 **Business Documents**

At the request of the City, Consultant must provide copies of its latest articles of incorporation, by-laws and resolutions, or partnership or joint venture agreement, as applicable.

# **5** Conflicts of Interest

(a) No member of the governing body of the City or other unit of government and no other officer, employee or agent of the City or other unit of government who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the Services to which this Agreement pertains is permitted to have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States or the Illinois General Assembly and no alderman of the City or City employee is allowed to be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or to any financial benefit to arise from it.

22

- b) Consultant represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its Subcontractors if any (Consultant and Subcontractors will be collectively referred to in this Section 6.5 as "Consulting Parties"), presently have no direct or indirect interest and will not acquire any direct or indirect interest in any project or contract that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its Services under this Agreement.
- c) Upon the request of the City, Consulting Parties must disclose to the City their past client lists and the names of any clients with whom they have an ongoing relationship. Consulting Parties are not permitted to perform any Services for the City on applications or other documents submitted to the City by any of Consulting Parties' past or present clients. If Consulting Parties become aware of a conflict, they must immediately stop work on the assignment causing the conflict and notify the City.

- d) Without limiting the foregoing, if the Consulting Parties assist the City in determining the advisability or feasibility of a project or in recommending, researching, preparing, drafting or issuing a request for proposals or bid specifications for a project, the Consulting Parties must not participate, directly or indirectly, as a prime, subcontractor or joint venturer in that project or in the preparation of a proposal or bid for that project during the term of this Agreement or afterwards. The Consulting Parties may, however, assist the City in reviewing the proposals or bids for the project if none of the Consulting Parties have a relationship with the persons or entities that submitted the proposals or bids for that project.
- e) Further, Consulting Parties must not assign any person having any conflicting interest to perform any Services under this Agreement or have access to any confidential information, as described in Section 2.11 of this Agreement. If the City, by the Commissioner in her reasonable judgment, determines that any of Consulting Parties' services for others conflict with the Services that Consulting Parties are to render for the City under this Agreement, Consulting Parties must terminate such other services immediately upon request of the City.
- f) Furthermore, if any federal funds are to be used to compensate or reimburse Consultant under this Agreement, Consultant represents that it is and will remain in compliance with federal restrictions on lobbying set forth in Section 319 of the Department of the Interior and Related Agencies Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 1990, 31 U.S.C. § 1352, and related rules and regulations set forth at 54 Fed. Reg. 52,309 ff. (1989), as amended. If federal funds are to be used, Consultant must execute a Certification Regarding Lobbying, which is part of the EDS and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth here.

# 6.6 Non-Liability of Public Officials

Consultant and any assignee or Subcontractor of Consultant must not charge any official, employee or agent of the City personally with any liability or expenses of defense or hold any official, employee or agent of the City personally liable to them under any term or provision of

23

this Agreement or because of the City's execution, attempted execution or any breach of this Agreement.

# 6.7 EDS / Certification Regarding Suspension and Debarment

Consultant certifies, as further evidenced in the EDS attached as Exhibit 3. by its acceptance of this Agreement that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. Consultant further agrees by executing this Agreement that it will include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions, solicitations, proposals, contracts and subcontracts. If Consultant or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this statement, it must attach an explanation to the Agreement.

# ARTICLE 7. EVENTS OF DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION, SUSPENSION AND RIGHT TO OFFSET

#### 7.1 Events of Default Defined

The following constitute events of default:

- a) Any material misrepresentation, whether negligent or willful and whether in the inducement or in the performance, made by Consultant to the City.
- b) Consultant's material failure to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement including the following:
  - i) Failure to perform the Services with sufficient personnel and equipment or with sufficient material to ensure the timely performance of the Services;
  - ii) Failure to have and maintain all professional licenses required by law to perform the Services;
  - iii) Failure to timely perform the Services;
  - iv) Failure to perform the Services in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the Commissioner or inability to perform the Services satisfactorily as a result of insolvency, filing for bankruptcy or assignment for the benefit of creditors;
  - v) Failure to promptly re-perform, as required, within a reasonable time and at no cost to the City, Services that are rejected as erroneous or unsatisfactory;
  - vi) Discontinuance of the Services for reasons within Consultant's reasonable control;

24

- vii) Failure to comply with Section 5.1 in the performance of the Agreement;
- viii) Failure promptly to update EDS(s) furnished in connection with this Agreement when the information or responses contained in it or them is no longer complete or accurate;
- ix) Failure to comply with any other material term of this Agreement, including the provisions concerning insurance and nondiscrimination; and
- x) Any other acts specifically stated in this Agreement as constituting an act of default.
- c) Any change in ownership or control of Consultant without the prior written approval of the Commissioner (when such prior approval is permissible by law), which approval the Commissioner will not unreasonably withhold.
- d) Consultant's default under any other agreement it may presently have or may enter into with the City for the duration of this Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that in the event of a default under this

Agreement the City may also declare a default under any such other agreements.

- e) Consultant's violation of City ordinance(s) unrelated to performance under the Agreement such that, in the opinion of the Commissioner, it indicates a willful or reckless disregard for City laws and regulations.
- f) Consultant's failure to update its EDS to reflect any changes in information, including changes in ownership, and to provide it to the City as provided under Section 5.1(a).

#### 7.2 Remedies

(a) Notices. The occurrence of any event of default permits the City, at the City's sole option, to declare Consultant in default. The Commissioner may in his sole discretion give Consultant an opportunity to cure the default within a certain period of time, which period of time must not exceed 30 days unless extended by the Commissioner. Whether to declare Consultant in default is within the sole discretion of the Commissioner and neither that decision nor the factual basis for it is subject to review or challenge under the Disputes provision of this Agreement.

The Commissioner will give Consultant written notice of the default, either in the form of a cure notice ("Cure Notice"), or, if no opportunity to cure will be granted, a default notice ("Default Notice"). If the Commissioner gives a Default Notice, he will also indicate any present intent he may have to terminate this Agreement, and the decision to terminate is final and effective upon giving the notice. If the Commissioner decides not to terminate, this decision will not preclude him from later deciding to terminate the Agreement in a later notice, which will be

25

final and effective upon the giving of the notice or on the date set forth in the notice, whichever is later. The Commissioner may give a Default Notice if Consultant fails to effect a cure within the cure period given in a Cure Notice. When a Default Notice with intent to terminate is given as provided in this Section 7.2 and Article 9, Consultant must discontinue any Services, unless otherwise directed in the notice, and deliver all materials accumulated in the performance of this Agreement, whether completed or in the process, to the City.

- b) Exercise of Remedies. After giving a Default Notice, the City may invoke any or all of the following remedies:
- i) The right to take over and complete the Services, or any part of them, at Consultant's expense and as agent for Consultant, either directly or through others, and bill Consultant for the cost of the Services, and Consultant must pay the difference between the total amount of this bill and the amount the City would have paid Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement for the Services that were assumed by the City as agent for Consultant under this Section 7.2;
- ii) The right to terminate this Agreement as to any or all of the Services yet to be performed effective at a time specified by the City;
  - iii) The right of specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable

remedy;

- iv) The right to money damages;
- v) The right to withhold all or any part of Consultant's compensation under this Agreement;
- vi) The right to deem Consultant non-responsible in future contracts to be awarded by the City;
- vii) The right to declare default on any other contract or agreement Consultant may have with the City.
- c) City's Reservation of Rights. If the Commissioner considers it to be in the City's best interests, he may elect not to declare default or to terminate this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this provision is solely for the benefit of the City and that if the City permits Consultant to continue to provide the Services despite one or more events of default, Consultant is in no way relieved of any of its responsibilities, duties or obligations under this Agreement, nor does the City waive or relinquish any of its rights.
- d) Non-Exclusivity of Remedies. The remedies under the terms of this Agreement are not intended to be exclusive of any other remedies provided, but each and every such remedy is cumulative and is in addition to any other remedies, existing now or later, at law, in equity or

26

by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any event of default impairs any such right or power, nor is it a waiver of any event of default nor acquiescence in it, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as the City considers expedient.

# 3 Early Termination

- a) In addition to termination under Sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Agreement, the City may terminate this Agreement, or all or any portion of the Services to be performed under it, at any time by a notice in writing from the City to Consultant. The City will give notice to Consultant in accordance with the provisions of Article 9. The effective date of termination will be the date the notice is received by Consultant or the date stated in the notice, whichever is later. If the City elects to terminate this Agreement in full, all Services to be provided under it must cease and all materials that may have been accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in the process, must be delivered to the City effective 10 days after the date the notice is considered received as provided under Article 9 of this Agreement (if no date is given) or upon the effective date stated in the notice.
- b) After the notice is received, Consultant must restrict its activities to winding down any reports, analyses, or other activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination are allowed. Payment for any Services actually and satisfactorily performed before the effective date of the termination is on the same basis as set forth in Article 4, but if any compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than 10 days, then the compensation must be prorated accordingly. No amount of compensation, however, is permitted for anticipated profits on unperformed Services. The City and

Consultant must attempt to agree on the amount of compensation to be paid to Consultant, but if not agreed on, the dispute must be settled in accordance with this Agreement. The payment so made to Consultant is in full settlement for all Services satisfactorily performed under this Agreement.

c) If the City's election to terminate this Agreement for default under Sections 7.1 and 7.2 is determined in a court of competent jurisdiction to have been wrongful, then in that case the termination is to be considered to be an early termination under this Section 7.3.

# 4 Suspension

The City may at any time request that Consultant suspend its Services, or any part of them, by giving 15 days prior written notice to Consultant or upon informal oral, or even no notice, in the event of emergency. No costs incurred after the effective date of such suspension are allowed. Consultant must promptly resume its performance of the Services under the same terms and conditions as stated in this Agreement upon written notice by the Commissioner and such equitable extension of time as may be mutually agreed upon by the Commissioner and Consultant when necessary for continuation or completion of Services. Any additional costs or expenses actually incurred by Consultant as a result of recommencing the Services must be treated in accordance with the compensation provisions under Article 4 of this Agreement.

27

# 7.5 Right to Offset

- a) In connection with Consultant's performance under this Agreement, the City may offset any incremental costs and other damages the City incurs in any or all of the following circumstances:
  - (i) if the City terminates this Agreement for default or any other reason resulting from Consultant's performance or non-performance;
  - (ii) if the City exercises any of its remedies under Section 7.2 of this Agreement;
  - (iii) if the City has any credits due or has made any overpayments under this Agreement.

The City may offset these incremental costs and other damages by use of any payment due for Services completed before the City terminated this Agreement or before the City exercised any remedies. If the amount offset is insufficient to cover those incremental costs and other damages, Consultant is liable for and must promptly remit to the City the balance upon written demand for it. This right to offset is in addition to and not a limitation of any other remedies available to the City.

b) As provided under § 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code, the City may set off from Consultant's compensation under this Agreement an amount equal to the amount of the fines and penalties for each outstanding parking violation complaint and the amount of any debt owed by Consultant to the City as those italicized terms are defined in the Municipal Code.

c) In connection with any liquidated or unliquidated claims against Consultant, and without breaching this Agreement, the City may set off a portion of the price or compensation due under this Agreement in an amount equal to the amount of any liquidated or unliquidated claims that the City has against Consultant unrelated to this Agreement. When the City's claims against Consultant are finally adjudicated in a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise resolved, the City will reimburse Consultant to the extent of the amount the City has offset against this Agreement inconsistently with such determination or resolution.

#### **ARTICLE 8. GENERAL CONDITIONS**

## 8.1 Entire Agreement

# (a) General

This Agreement, and the exhibits attached to it and incorporated in it, constitute the entire agreement between the parties and no other terms, conditions, warranties, inducements,

28

considerations, promises or interpretations are implied or impressed upon this Agreement that are not addressed in this Agreement.

# b) No Collateral Agreements

Consultant acknowledges that, except only for those representations, statements or promises contained in this Agreement and any exhibits attached to it and incorporated by reference in it, no representation, statement or promise, oral or in writing, of any kind whatsoever, by the City, its officials, agents or employees, has induced Consultant to enter into this Agreement or has been relied upon by Consultant, including any with reference to: (i) the meaning, correctness, suitability or completeness of any provisions or requirements of this Agreement; (ii) the nature of the Services to be performed; (iii) the nature, quantity, quality or volume of any materials, equipment, labor and other facilities needed for the performance of this Agreement; (iv) the general conditions which may in any way affect this Agreement or its performance; (v) the compensation provisions of this Agreement; or (vi) any other matters, whether similar to or different from those referred to in (i) through (vi) immediately above, affecting or having any connection with this Agreement, its negotiation, any discussions of its performance or those employed or connected or concerned with it.

#### c) No Omissions

Consultant acknowledges that Consultant was given ample opportunity and time and was requested by the City to review thoroughly all documents forming this Agreement before signing this Agreement in order that it might request inclusion in this Agreement of any statement, representation, promise or provision that it desired or on that it wished to place reliance. Consultant did so review those documents, and either every such statement, representation, promise or provision has been included in this Agreement or else, if omitted, Consultant relinquishes the benefit of any such omitted statement, representation, promise or provision and is willing to perform this Agreement in its entirety without claiming reliance on it or making any other claim on account of its omission.

# 2 Counterparts

This Agreement is comprised of several identical counterparts, each to be fully signed by the parties and each to be considered an original having identical legal effect.

#### 3 Amendments

Except as provided in Section 3.3 of this Agreement, no changes, amendments, modifications or discharge of this Agreement, or any part of it are valid unless in writing and signed by the authorized agent of Consultant and by the Commissioner or their respective successors and assigns. The City incurs no liability for Additional Services without a written amendment to this Agreement under this Section 8.3.

29

Whenever under this Agreement Consultant is required to obtain the City's prior written approval, the effect of any approval that may be granted pursuant to Consultant's request is prospective only from the later of the date approval was requested or the date on which the action for which the approval was sought is to begin. In no event is approval permitted to apply retroactively to a date before the approval was requested.

# 4 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Agreement is governed as to performance and interpretation in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.

Consultant irrevocably submits itself to the original jurisdiction of those courts located within the County of Cook, State of Illinois, with regard to any controversy arising out of, relating to, or in any way concerning the execution or performance of this Agreement. Service of process on Consultant may be made, at the option of the City, either by registered or certified mail addressed to the applicable office as provided for in this Agreement, by registered or certified mail addressed to the office actually maintained by Consultant, or by personal delivery on any officer, director, or managing or general agent of Consultant. If any action is brought by Consultant against the City concerning this Agreement, the action must be brought only in those courts located within the County of Cook, State of Illinois.

# 5 Severability

If any provision of this Agreement is held or deemed to be or is in fact invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or provisions of this Agreement or of any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule of law or public policy, or for any other reason, those circumstances do not have the effect of rendering the provision in question invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstances, or of rendering any other provision or provisions in this Agreement invalid, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatsoever. The invalidity, illegality, inoperativeness or unenforceability of any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections in this Agreement does not affect the remaining portions of this Agreement or any part of it.

# 6 Assigns

All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective legal representatives, successors and assigns.

# 7 Cooperation

Consultant must at all times cooperate fully with the City and act in the City's best interests. If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, or if it is to expire on its own terms, Consultant must make every effort to ensure an orderly transition to another provider of the

30

Services, if any, orderly demobilization of its own operations in connection with the Services, uninterrupted provision of Services during any transition period and must otherwise comply with the reasonable requests and requirements of the Department in connection with the termination or expiration.

#### 8 Waiver

Nothing in this Agreement authori zes the waiver of a requirement or condition contrary to law or ordinance or that would result in or promote the violation of any federal, state or local law or ordinance.

Whenever under this Agreement the City by a proper authority waives Consultant's performance in any respect or waives a requirement or condition to either the City's or Consultant's performance, the waiver so granted, whether express or implied, only applies to the particular instance and is not a waiver forever or for subsequent instances of the performance, requirement or condition. No such waiver is a modification of this Agreement regardless of the number of times the City may have waived the performance, requirement or condition. Such waivers must be provided to Consultant in writing.

# 9 **Independent Contractor**

- a) This Agreement is not intended to and does not constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership, corporation or other formal business association or organization of any kind between Consultant and the City. The rights and the obligations of the parties are only those set forth in this Agreement. Consultant must perform under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as a representative, employee, agent, or partner of the City.
- b) This Agreement is between the City and an independent contractor and, if Consultant is an individual, nothing provided for under this Agreement constitutes or implies an employer-employee relationship such that:
  - i) The City will not be liable under or by reason of this Agreement for the payment of any compensation award or damages in connection with the Consultant performing the Services required under this Agreement.

- ii) Consultant is not entitled to membership in any City Pension Fund, Group Medical Insurance Program, Group Dental Program, Group Vision Care, Group Life Insurance Program, Deferred Income Program, vacation, sick leave, extended sick leave, or any other benefits ordinarily provided to individuals employed and paid through the regular payrolls of the City.
- iii) The City is not required to deduct or withhold any taxes, FICA or other deductions from any compensation provided to Consultant.

31

- (c)(i) The City is subject to the May 31, 2007 Order entitled "Agreed Settlement Order and Accord" (the "Shakman Accord") and the June 24, 2011 "City of Chicago Hiring Plan" (the "City Hiring Plan") entered in Shakman v. Democratic Organization of Cook County, Case No 69 C 2145 (United State District Court for the Northern District of Illinois). Among other things, the Shakman Accord and the City Hiring Plan prohibit the City from hiring persons as governmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of political reasons or factors.
- ii) Consultant is aware that City policy prohibits City employees from directing any individual to apply for a position with Consultant, either as an employee or as a subcontractor, and from directing Consultant to hire an individual as an employee or as a subcontractor. Accordingly, Consultant must follow its own hiring and contracting procedures, without being influenced by City employees. Any and all personnel provided by Consultant under this Agreement are employees or subcontractors of Consultant, not employees of the City of Chicago. This Agreement is not intended to and does not constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize an employer-employee relationship of any kind between the City and any personnel provided by Consultant.
- iii) Consultant will not condition, base, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term or aspect of the employment of any personnel provided under this Agreement, or offer employment to any individual to provide services under this Agreement, based upon or because of any political reason or factor, including, without limitation, any individual's political affiliation, membership in a political organization or party, political support or activity, political financial contributions, promises of such political support, activity or financial contributions, or such individual's political sponsorship or recommendation. For purposes of this Agreement, a political organization or party is an identifiable group or entity that has as its primary purpose the support of or opposition to candidates for elected public office. Individual political activities are the activities of individual persons in support of or in opposition to political organizations or parties or candidates for elected public office.
- iv) In the event of any communication to Consultant by a City employee or City official in violation of Section (ii) above, or advocating a violation of Section (iii) above, Consultant will, as soon as is reasonably practicable, report such communication to the Hiring Oversight Section of the City's Office of the Inspector General, and also to the head of the relevant City Department utilizing services provided under this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 9. NOTICES**

Notices provided for in this Agreement, unless provided for otherwise in this Agreement, must be given in writing and may be delivered personally or by placing in the United States mail, first class and certified, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

If to the City: Department of Planning and Development

City Hall, 10<sup>th</sup> floor

32

121 North LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois

60602 Attention: Commissioner

With Copies to:

Department of Law Room 600, City Hall 121 North LaSalle Street Chicago, Illinois 60602 Attention:

Corporation Counsel

If to Consultant:

Inner-City Muslim Action Network 2744 W. 63<sup>rd</sup> St. Chicago, Illinois 60629 Attention: Harriet Lewis

Changes in these addresses must be in writing and delivered in accordance with the provisions of this Article 9. Notices delivered by mail are considered received three days after mailing in accordance with this Article 9. Notices delivered personally are considered effective upon receipt. Refusal to accept delivery has the same effect as receipt.

#### **ARTICLE 10. AUTHORITY**

Execution of this Agreement by Consultant is authorized by a resolution of its Board of Directors, if a corporation, or similar governing document, and the signature(s) of each person signing on behalf of Consultant have been made with complete and full authority to commit Consultant to all terms and conditions of this Agreement, including each and every representation, certification and warranty contained in it, including the representations, certifications and warranties collectively incorporated by reference in it.

[Signature Pages, Exhibits and Schedules follow.]

File #: O2014-1847, Version: 1		
	33	
SIGNATURE PAGE(S) SIGNED at	Chicago,	
Illinois:		
	CITY OF	CHICAGO
E	By:	
	Commiss	oner, Department of Planning
	and Deve	opment
		INNER-CITY MUSLIM ACTION NETWORK
	By:	
	Its:	
	Attest:	
State of County of		
This instrument was acknowledged	before me on	(date) by
_(name/s of person/s) as (name of party on behalf of whom in		ity, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of eccuted).

(Signature of Notary Public) Seal:

34

## EXHIBIT 1

#### SCOPE OF SERVICES AND TIME LIMITS FOR PERFORMANCE

The project goals are: 1) develop and alternative business model, 2) increase access to healthier options in the stores, and 3) educate the storeowners and residents about healthy lifestyles.

For purposes of this Agreement, "we" or "our" refers to IMAN/Consultant.

# Summary of Request

IMAN is requesting \$40,000 to create a pilot initiative that builds on current efforts of providing direct support and intervention with corners stores. We will work directly with corner storeowners to increase healthy options and improve the aesthetics in their stores. In our effort to help boost their sales and demonstrate the viability of fresh produce, we will be collaborating with Growing Power to supply reach-in coolers and fresh food for several of the stores. This strategy is designed to educate the owners and also help them understand that dignifying their business practices will shift community norms about food and healthy lifestyles. As part of our organizing strategy, in addition to the Campaign Program Manager, each store will have a team of committed community leaders working with them on transforming their stores into spaces for healthy food and community education. During the 2014 program year, we also plan to develop a "proof of concept" by giving at least one of our committed corner storeowners a "healthy makeover" that includes store improvements like new signage, improved lighting, flooring and in-store displays promoting healthy options.

The short-term goals for the campaign are to have all 15 stores fully committed to our principles by increasing the availability of fresh healthy products in their stores while educating the community about leading healthier lifestyles. Our long-term goal is to have our campaign model expand across the South and West Sides of Chicago.

To help meet the objectives of this pilot initiative, we will help expand corner stores' capacity to sell and market healthy food by:

- Marketing and promoting City programs to repair, remodel and make facade improvements.
- Training and offering technical assistance to store owners to make healthy changes profitable.
- Working with store owners to develop creative marketing, merchandizing and promotions strategies.
- Linking corner store owners to community partners, local farmers and fresh produce distributors to create and sustain a healthy product mix.

Marketing healthy messages to community residents to encourage healthy eating choices and boost consumer demand for healthier products.

• Training on proper food handling of fresh products in order to maintain quality, reduce losses, and ensure food safety.

IMAN agrees to provide a first quarter report, mid-year report and final report documenting the process and outcomes of the year's work. Specifically, we will measure:

- Number of corner store contacts made.
- Number of corner stores taking advantage of City programs.
- Number of corner stores that have changed and sustained their product mix to include healthy and fresh options.
- Number of corner stores that have made visible improvements to the appearance of their store (i.e., signage, lighting, cleanliness, etc.).

IMAN believes that the "corner store" businesses in low-income neighborhoods sell food options that have led to an increase of obesity, hypertension and other related diseases. Our campaign will increase access to healthier options in corner stores, educate the owners about dignified practices for dealing with customers and allow their stores to become thriving small businesses. In addition, increasing healthy options can also help stimulate local economies by creating jobs for local residents, capture dollars that would otherwise be spent outside of the community, and revitalize neighborhoods.

This initiative shall take place over a 12 month period.

#### EXHIBIT 2

#### SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION

IMAN agrees to provide a first quarter report, mid-year report and final report documenting the process and outcomes of the year's work. Specifically, we will measure:

- Number of corner store contacts made.
- Number of corner stores taking advantage of City programs.
- Number of corner stores that have changed and sustained their product mix to include healthy and fresh options.
- Number of corner stores that have made visible improvements to the appearance of their store (i.e., signage, lighting, cleanliness, etc.).

Compensation will be paid in accordance with Article 4 of the Agreement in four (4) equal installments upon

each of the following events: first upon Agreement execution and approval by City Council, and then upon City's receipt and acceptance of each of the three reports described above.

# EXHIBIT 3

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT AND AFFIDAVIT

# CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT and AFFIDAVIT Related to Contract/Amendment/Solicitation EDS #49797

# **SECTION I -- GENERAL INFORMATION**

A. Legal name of the Disclosing Party submitting the EDS: Inner-City Muslim Action Network

Enter d/b/a if applicable:

The Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is: the Applicant

B. Business address of the Disclosing Party:

2744 W. 63 St. Chicago, IL 60629 United States

C.Telephone:

773-434-4626

Fax:

773-303-8858

Email:

harriet@imancentral.org <mailto:harriet@imancentral.org>

- D. Name of contact person: Harriet Lewis
- E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one):

F. Brief description of contract, transaction or other undertaking (referred to below the "Matter") to which this EDS pertains:

Corner Store Fresh Food Intervention

File #: O2014-1847, Version: 1
Which City agency or department is requesting this EDS?
DEPT OF HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Specification Number
Contract (PO) Number
Revision Number
Release Number
User Department Project Number
SECTION II « DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
A. NATURE OFTHE DISCLOSING PARTY
1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party:
Not-for-profit corporation
Is the Disclosing Party also a 501 (c)(3) organization?
Yes
Is the Disclosing Party incorporated or organized in the State of Illinois? Yes
B. DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY: 1.a.1 Does the Disclosing
Party have any directors?
Yes
1.a.3 List below the full names and titles of all executive officers and all directors, if any, of the entity. Do not include any directors who have no power to select the entity's officers.
Officer/Director: Title:

File #: O2014-1847, Version: 1 Role: Officer/Director: Title: Dr. Rami Nashashibi Executive Director Both Mr. David Kelly Director Director Mr. Umar Carter President Both Mr. Clyde K. El-Amin Vice President Both

Mr. Feroz Patel

Director

Director

Ms. Laila Muhammad

Director

Director

Ms. Maaria Mozaffar

Director

Director

Ms. Nia Odeoti-Hassan

Director

Director

Dr. Tariq Iftekhar

Director

Director

Mr. Zubair Tajuddin Secretary

#### Role:

Mr. Abed Moiduddin

Treasurer

#### Role:

Dr. Aminah McCloud

Director

#### Role:

1 .a.5 Are there any members of the non-for-prafit Disclosing Party which are legal entities?

No

# SECTION III - BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY ELECTED OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing Party had a "business relationship," as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code, with any City elected official in the 12 months before the date this EDS is signed?

No

# SECTION IV - DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Party must disclose the name and business address of each subcontractor, attorney, lobbyist, accountant, consultant and any other person or entity whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection with the Matter, as well as the nature of the relationship,

and the total amount of the fees paid or estimated to be paid. The Disclosing Party is not required to disclose employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing Party's regular payroll.

"Lobbyist" means any person or entity who undertakes to influence any legislative or administrative action on behalf of any person or entity other than: (1) a not-for-profit entity, on an unpaid basis, or (2) himself. "Lobbyist" also means any person or entity any part of whose duties as an employee of another includes undertaking to influence any legislative or administrative action.

If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required or make the disclosure.

-4-

1. Has the Disclosing Party retained any legal entities in connection with the Matter?

No

3. Has the Disclosing Party retained any persons in connection with the Matter? No

# **SECTION V - CERTIFICATIONS**

# A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under Municipal Code Section 2-92-415. substantial owners of business entities that contract with the City must remain in compliance with their child support obligations throughout the contract's term.

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party been declared in arrearage of any child support obligations by any Illinois court of competent jurisdiction?

Not applicable because no person directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party

# B.FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

- 1. Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 1-23. Article I ("Article I")(which the Applicant should consult for defined terms (e.g., "doing business") and legal requirements), if the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is the Applicant and is doing business with the City, then the Disclosing Party certifies as follows:
  - i. neither the Applicant nor any controlling person is currently indicted or charged with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under supervision for, any criminal offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracy to commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an officer or employee of the City or any sister agency; and
  - ii. the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article I is a continuing requirement for doing business with the City.

NOTE: If Article I applies to the Applicant, the permanent compliance timeframe in Article I supersedes some five-year compliance timeframes in certifications 2 and 3 below.

I certify the above to be true

2. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those persons or entities identified in Section II.B.1. of this EDS:

-5-

- a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or local unit of government;
- b. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been convicted of a criminal offense, adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment rendered against them in connection with: obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud; embezzlement; theft; forgery; bribery; falsification or destruction of records; making false statements; or receiving stolen property;
- c. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with committing any of the offenses set forth in clause B.2.b. of this Section V;
- d. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, had one or more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default; and
- e. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been convicted, adjudged guilty, or found liable in a civil proceeding, or in any criminal or civil action, including actions concerning environmental violations, instituted by the City or by the federal government, any state, or any other unit of local government.
- I certify the above to be true
- 3. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor, nor any Affiliated Entity of either the Disclosing Party or any Contractor nor any Agents have, during the five years before the date this EDS is signed, or, with respect to a Contractor, an Affiliated Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the five years before the date of such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagement in connection with the Matter
  - a. bribed or attempted to bribe, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of bribery or attempting to bribe, a public officer or employee of the City, the State of Illinois, or any agency of the federal government or of any state or local government in the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's official capacity;
  - agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party to any such agreement, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders, in restraint of freedom of competition by agreement to bid a fixed price or otherwise; or
  - c. made an admission of such conduct described in a. or b. above that is a matter of record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or
  - d. violated the provisions of Municipal Code Section 2-92-610 (Living Wage Ordinance).
- I certify the above to be true

-6-

- 4. Neither the Disclosing Party. Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their employees, officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of state or local government as a result of engaging in or being convicted of
  - bid-rigging in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-3:
  - bid-rotating in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-4: or
  - any similar offense of any state or of the United States of America that contains the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.
- I certify the above to be true
- 5. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on any of the following lists maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury or the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of Commerce or their successors: the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified List, the Entity List and the Debarred List.
- I certify the above to be true.
- 6. The Disclosing Party understands and shall comply with the applicable requirements of Chapters 2-55 (Legislative Inspector General). Chapter 2-56 (Inspector General) and Chapter 2-156 (Governmental Ethics) of the Municipal Code.
- I certify the above to be true
- 7. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the following is a complete list of all current employees of the Disclosing Party who were, at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.

None

8. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the following is a complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused to be given, at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago. For purposes of this statement, a "gift" does not include: (i) anything made generally available to City employees or to the general public, or (ii) food or drink provided

in the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than \$20 per recipient.

None

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

-7-

The Disclosing Party certifies that, as defined in Section 2-32-455(b) of the Municipal Code, the

# **Disclosing Party**

is not a "financial institution"

#### D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS

Any words or terms that are defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code have the same meanings when used in this Part D.

1. In accordance with Section 2-156-110 of the Municipal Code: Does any official or employee of the City have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name of any other person or entity in the Matter?

No

# E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

If the Disclosing Party cannot make this verification, the Disclosing Party must disclose all required information in the space provided below or in an attachment in the "Additional Info" tab. Failure to comply with these disclosure requirements may make any contract entered into with the City in connection with the Matter voidable by the City.

The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all records of the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding records of investments or profits from slavery or slaveholder insurance policies during the slavery era (including insurance policies issued to slaveholders that provided coverage for damage to or injury or death of their slaves), and the Disclosing Party has found no such records.

I can make the above verification

# SECTION VI - CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED MATTERS

Is the Matter federally funded? For the purposes of this Section VI, tax credits allocated by the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal funding.

No

# SECTION VII - ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, CONTRACT INCORPORATION, COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

-8-

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS will become part of any contract or other agreement between the Applicant and the City in connection with the Matter, whether procurement, City assistance, or other City action, and are material inducements to the City's execution of any contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party understands that it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Ethics and Campaign Financing Ordinances, Chapters 2-156 and 2-164 of the Municipal Code, impose certain duties and obligations on persons or entities seeking City contracts, work, business, or transactions. A training program is available on line at www.cityofchicago.org/city/en/depts/ethics.html <a href="http://www.cityofchicago.org/city/en/depts/ethics.html">http://www.cityofchicago.org/city/en/depts/ethics.html</a>, and may also be obtained from the City's Board of Ethics, 740 N. Sedgwick St., Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60610, (312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with the applicable ordinances.

I acknowledge and consent to the above The Disclosing Party understands and

# agrees that:

- C. If the City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false, incomplete or inaccurate, any contract or other agreement in connection with which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void or voidable, and the City may pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or void), at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in the Matter and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other transactions with the City. Remedies at law for a false statement of material fact may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble damages.
- D. It is the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet site and/or upon request. Some or all of the information provided on this EDS and any attachments to this EDS may be made available to the public on the Internet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any possible rights or claims which it may have against the City in connection with the public release of information contained in this EDS and also authorizes the City to verify the accuracy of any information submitted in this EDS.
- E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. In the event of changes, the Disclosing Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a contract being handled by the City's Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must update this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matters subject
  - to Article I of Chapter 1-23 of the Municipal Code (imposing PERMANENT INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the information provided herein

-9-

regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required by Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code.

I acknowledge and consent to the above The Disclosing Party

# represents and warrants that:

F.1. The Disclosing Party is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue, nor are the Disclosing Party or its Affiliated Entities delinquent in paying any fine, fee, tax or other charge owed to the City. This includes, but is not limited to, all water charges, sewer charges, license fees, parking tickets, property taxes or sales taxes.

I certify the above to be true

F.2 If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party and its Affiliated Entities will not use, nor permit their subcontractors to use, any facility listed by the U.S. E.P.A. on the federal Excluded Parties List System ("EPLS") maintained by the U.S. General Services Administration.

I certify the above to be true

F.3 If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party will obtain from any contractors/subcontractors hired or to be hired in connection with the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in F.1. and F.2. above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or that the Disclosing Party has reason to believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful certifications.

I certify the above to be true

# FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

This question is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity which has a direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5 percent. It is not to be completed by any legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in the Applicant.

Under Municipal Code Section 2-154-015. the Disclosing Party must disclose whether such Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner thereof currently has a "familial relationship" with any elected city official or department head. A "familial relationship" exists if, as of the date this EDS is signed, the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or

-10-

any city department head as spouse or domestic partner or as any of the following, whether by blood or adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece or nephew, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or stepdaughter, stepbrother or stepsister or half-brother or half-sister.

"Applicable Party" means (1) all corporate officers of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a general partnership; all general partners and limited partners of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers, managing members and members of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of the Disclosing Party; and (3) any person having more than a 7.5 percent ownership interest in the Disclosing Party. "Principal officers" means the president, chief operating officer, executive director, chief financial officer, treasurer or secretary of a legal entity or any person exercising similar authority.

Does the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner thereof currently have a "familial relationship" with an elected city official or department head?

No

# **ADDITIONAL INFO**

Please add any additional explanatory information here. If explanation is longer than 1000 characters, you may add an attachment below. Please note that your EDS, including all attachments, becomes available for public viewing upon contract award. Your attachments will be viewable "as is" without manual redaction by the City. You are responsible for redacting any non-public information from your documents before uploading.

List of vendor attachments uploaded by City staff None.

List of attachments uploaded by vendor None.

# **CERTIFICATION**

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is authorized to execute this EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants

-11 -

that all certifications and statements contained in this EDS are true, accurate and complete as of the date furnished to the City.

/s/11/20/2013 Harriet Lewis Development Inner-City Muslim Action Network

This is a printed copy of the Economic Disclosure Statement, the original of which is filed electronically with the City of Chicago. Any alterations must be made electronically, alterations on this printed copy are void and of no effect.

-12-

# **CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC**

# **DISCLOSURE STATEMENT**

EDS Number: 49797 Certificate Printed on: 01/17/2014

Date of This Filingrl 1/20/2013 12:14 PM Original Filing Date: 11/20/2013 12:14 PM

Disclosing Party: Inner-City Muslim Action Title: Development Network

Filed by: Harriet Lewis

Matter Corner Store Fresh Food Intervention Applicant: Inner-

**City Muslim Action Network Specification #: Contract #:** 

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with the City. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contact with other required documents pertaining to the Matter. For additional guidance as to when to provide this Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the Matter or consult with your City contact.

A copy of the EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting

<https://webappsl.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb> and entering the EDS number into the EDS Search. Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online only to the disclosing party and the City, but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act. The filing is visible online to the public after contract award.

**EXHIBIT 4 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND** 

#### **EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE**

Consultant must provide and maintain at Consultant's own expense or cause to be provided during the term of the Agreement, the insurance coverage and requirements specified below, insuring all operations related to the Agreement.

# A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

# 1) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering all employees who are to provide a service under this Agreement and Employers Liability coverage with limits of not less than \$ 100,000 each accident, illness or disease.

# 2) Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage liability. Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations, products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense, and contractual liability (not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent). The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising directly or indirectly from the work or services.

# 3) Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with work to be performed, Consultant must provide or cause to be provided, Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of not less than \$ 300,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis.

# 4) Professional Liability

When any professional consultants perform work or services in connection with this Agreement, Professional Liability Insurance covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained or cause to be maintained, with limits of not less than \$500,000. When policies are renewed or replaced, the policy retroactive date must coincide with, or precede, start of work on the Agreement. A claims-made policy which is not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of two (2) years.

# B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Consultant must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Planning and Development, City Hall, Room 1000,121 North LaSalle Street, Chicago IL. 60602, original Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Agreement, and Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration or renewal date occurring during the term of this Agreement. Consultant must submit evidence of insurance on an Insurance Certificate Form prior to execution of Agreement. The receipt of

any certificate does not constitute agreement by the City that the insurance requirements in the Agreement have been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all Agreement requirements. The failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance evidence from Consultant is not a waiver by the City of any requirements for Consultant to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. Consultant must advise all insurers of the Agreement provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not relieve Consultant of the obligation to provide insurance as specified in this Agreement. Nonfulfillment of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Agreement, and the City retains the right to stop work until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Agreement may be terminated.

Consultant must provide for sixty (30) days prior written notice to be given to the City in the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by Consultant.

Consultant hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Consultant in no way limit Consultant's liabilities and responsibilities specified within the Agreement or by law.

Any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute with insurance provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the indemnification language in this Agreement or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this Agreement given as a matter of law.

If Consultant is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

Consultant must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or Consultant may provide the coverage for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to the same insurance requirements of Consultant unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.

If Consultant or subcontractor desire additional coverages, the party desiring the additional coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provisions in the Agreement to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these requirements.

02/13/2814 12:31 17737780903

# ACQRD,, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSLINE (MM/DD/YYVY) 02/13/2014

producer (773)778-0900 FAX (THIS CERTIFICATE 18 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO I Insurance Agency 3346 W. 63rd St. CCERTIFICATE DOE8 NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THI INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURED IMAN 2744 W. 63rd St. Chicago, insuhera; Scottsdale Insurance Co.

insurers. Artisan and Truckers Cas. Co.

insurerc: Essex Ins. Co.

INSURER D;

# **COVERAGES**

THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH REBPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE

MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND
CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. AGGREGATE UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

	TYPE OF INSURAN E	NU MBE	POLICY EXPIRATION DATE (MiynrVYYI	LIMITS
Α	GENERA L LIABILIT	CPS180009/11/2013	09/11/2014	EACH * 1.000,000
	X	COMMERCI CLAIMS MA	DAMAGE TO REKTI* 100,000 PREMISFK (Fa nm^\ MED EXP {Any one  * 5,000	
				PERSONAL A. ADV s 1,000,000
				GENERAL AGGRE's 2,000,000
	GEI "*	TL AGGREC PER		PRODUCTS - COMF* 1,000,000
	•	POLICY		
В	AU1	rOMOBILE 10819901209/26/2013 ALL OWNEL AUTOS HIR	09/26/2014	COMBINED SINGLE <sub>S</sub> (Eis accident)
	X	OWNED AU		BODILY INJURY (Pes 100,000
				BODILY INJURY (Pe* 300,000
	OARAGE LIABILIT			PROPERTY DAMAC* 100,000 accident) AUTO ONLY- EAACCIDENT
	Υ	ANY AUTO		OTHER THAN EAA(*
				AUTO Only: aG0
	EXCESS/ UMBREL LA LIABILIT			EACH OCCURRENCE \$
	Y	OCCUR		AGGREGATE S
				S
		DEDUCTIBL		*
WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANY PROPHIETOR/PA RTNERJEXECUT IVE OFFICER/MEMB ER EXCLUDED?				J WC STATU- OTH- TDRYIIMrTS FR
If yes, des under SPI PROVISIO below	cribe ECIAL			E.L. EACH S ACCIDENT E.L DISEASE - EA » EMPLOYEE

EMPLOYEE E.L. DISEASE -POLICY LIMIT

С	OTHER .	S	10/28/2013	10/28/2014	\$1,000,000 Each Occurenc
,		M-			\$2,000,000 Aggregate
	Professiona	89			
	l Liability	72			

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES / EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY

VEHICLES / EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT / SPECIAL PROVISIONS The City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents or representatives are listed on the policy as additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis with a waiver of

subrogation CANCELIATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRJE60 POLIC3E3 BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF/THE I3SUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO HAIL

30 DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT. BUT FAILURE TO MAIL SUCH NOTICE SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UEONJTJE INSURER, ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES.

**CERTIFICATE HOLDER** 

City of Chicago ACORD 25 (2001/08) ©ACORD CORPORATION 1988

Department of Planning and Development City Hall Room 1000 121 North LaSalle St Chicago, IL 60602

2/18/2014 4:21:50 PM PAGE

SUPREME INSURANCE 3346 W 63RD CHICAGO, IL 60629 1-773-778-0900

73 60

# **PROGRESSIVE**

Policy number. 0S199012-2 Underwritten by: Artisan and Truckers Casualty Co February tfi, 2014 Page 1 oi 1

# **Certificate of Insurance**

Certfflate Holder

Additional Insured

CITY OF CHICAGO DEPT OF HOUSINGS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 121 NLA SALLE ST #1006 CHICAGO, IL 60601 Insured

INNER-CITY MUSLIM ACTION NETWORK 2744W63RDST CHICAGO, IL 60629 Agent

SUPREME INSURANCE 3346W63RD CHICAGO.IL 60629

This document certifies that insurance policies identified below have been issued by the designated insurer to the insured named above for the period(s) indicated. This Certificate is issued for information purpose only. It confers no rights upon the certificate holder and does not change, alter, modify, or extend the coverages afforded by the policies listed below. The coverages afforded by the policies listed below are subject to all the terms, exclusions, limitations, endorsements,

and conditions of these policies.

Policy Effective Date: Sep 26,2013 Policy Bcptration Date: Sep 26<sup>^</sup>, 2014

liKurmtiQ cov\*rage(s) Limits

Bodily Injury/Property Damage \$300,666 Combined Single Limit

Description of Location/Vehkles/Spec'ial Items Scheduled autos only

Certificate number 04914A07012

forni S241 (10,02)

Please be advised that additional insureds and loss payees will be notified in the event of a mid-term cancellation.

# **EXHIBIT 5 LIST OF KEY PERSONNEL**

# Healthy Corner Store Project Manager

Primary responsibilities include ensuring the implementation and execution of the project goals: 1) develop and alternative business model, 2) increase access to healthier options in the stores, and 3) educate the storeowners and residents about healthy lifestyles. S/he will be responsible for working directly with the store owners, keeping track of day-to-day activities and sales, providing training and technical assistance, and connecting store owners with City programs, fresh produce distributors and local farmers.

# Director of Youth & Organizing

The Youth & Organizing Director will be responsible for overseeing and managing the long-term strategies for the Campaign for Health, Wellness and Healing, and ensuring the full integration of the Healthy Corner Store Pilot Project into the overall campaign.